
WHATCOM COUNTY CONTRACT 

INFORMATION SHEET 

Whatcom County Contract No. 

202307036 

Originating Denartment: Executive 

Division/Program: (i.e. Dept. Division and Program) Non-departmental / CDBG 

Contract or Grant Administrator: Billie Sue Rinn 

Contractor's / Agency Name: Opportunity Council 

Is this a New Contract? If not, is this an Amendment or Renewal to an Existing Contract? Yes 0 No 0 

Yes [8J No 0 If Amendment or Renewal, (per WCC 3.08.100 (a)) Original Contract #: 

Does contract require Council Approval? Yes [8J No 0 If No, include WCC: 
(see Whatcom County Codes 3.06.010, 3.08.090 and 3.08. l 00) 

Is this a grant agreement? 
Yes [8J No 0 If yes, grantor agency contract number(s): 22-62210-015 CFDA#: 14.228

Is this contract grantfunded? 
Yes [8J No 0 If yes, Whatcom County grant contract number(s): 202209025-1 

Is this contract the result of a RFP or Bid process? Contract 
Yes □ No [8J If yes, RFP and Bid number(s): Cost Center: 4301 

Is this agreement excluded from E-Verify? No [8J Yes 0 If no, include Attachment D Contractor Declaration form. 

IfYES, indicate exclusion(s) below: 
D Professional services agreement for certified/licensed professional. 
D Contract work is for less than $100,000. D Contract for Commercial off the shelf items (COTS). 
D Contract work is for less than 120 days. D Work related subcontract less than $25,000. 
D Interlocal Agreement (between Governments). 0 Public Works - Local Agency/Federally Funded FHW A 

Contract Amount:(sum of original contract Council approval required for; all property leases, contracts or bid awards exceeding 
amount and any prior amendments): $40,000, and professional service contract amendments that have an increase greater 

$ 134,000 than $10,000 or 10% of contract amount, whichever is greater, except when: 

This Amendment Amount: 
1. Exercising an option contained in a contract previously approved by the council.
2. Contract is for design, construction, r-o-w acquisition, prof. services, or other

$ capital costs approved by council in a capital budget appropriation ordinance.
Total Amended Amount: 3. Bid or award is for supplies.

$ 
4. Equipment is included in Exhibit "B" of the Budget Ordinance
5. Contract is for manufacturer's technical support and hardware maintenance of

electronic systems and/or technical support and software maintenance from the
developer of proprietary software currently used by Whatcom County.

Swnmary of Scope: This Subrecipient Agreement is for a CDBG Public Services Grant (pass-through) to provide services 
through the Opportunity Council to low- and moderate-income persons in Whatcom, Island and San Juan Counties. 

Term of Contract: 1 year Expiration Date: 6/30/24 

Contract Routing: 1. Prepared by: , B Rinn Date: 9/7/23 
- -- - ---------- - ------

2. Attorney signoff: _C_hri_·s_to�p_h_er_Quinn�·------- ------- Date:
3. AS Finance reviewed: A Martin Date: 

------------------

4. IT reviewed (if IT related): Date: 
5. Contractor signed: Date: 
6. Submitted to Exec.: Date: 
7. OppCo pre-approval/review: Date: 
8. Council approval:
9. Executive signed: Date: 
10. Original to Council: Date: 

Last edited 02/15/18 

9/7/2023
9/12/23





• Provide homeless housing and prevention screening, and qualifying and enrolling clients in
services such as Basic Food and other supportive programs within Island County. Staff will
also engage and refer to other local service providers to serve people who are homeless,
Veterans and people with mental health and chemical dependency issues.

• Provide housing support and other services within San Juan County through the
Community Resource Centers on San Juan, Orcas and Lopez Islands.

• Deliver the direct services in accordance with the CDBG application and the Commerce
agreement provided in Exhibit A .

• Ensure that CDBG funds are used in accordance with all program requirements [(24 CFR 
570.501(b)] and with the CDBG contract number 22-62210-015 (Exhibit A), and to meet 
the CDBG national objective of principally benefitting low- and moderate- income persons; 

• Submit invoices for completed activities on a monthly basis.
• Provide periodic reports to the Local Government to include quarterly CDBG Beneficiary

Reports, and narrative progress reports upon request of the Local Government.

2. TIME OF PERFORMANCE

The effective date of this Agreement will be July 1, 2023, regardless of the date the parties sign 
and complete execution of this agreement, and shall, unless otherwise terminated as elsewhere 
provided in the Agreement, terminate on June 30, 2024. 

3. AGREEMENT REPRESENTATIVES

Each party to this Agreement shall have a representative. Each party may change its representative 
upon providing written notice to the other party. The parties' representatives are as follows: 

A. Subrecipient:
Lorena Shah, Director of Operations Opportunity Council
1111 Cornwall A venue
Bellingham, WA 98225
(360) 734-5121, ext. 1157
lorena shah@oppco.org

B. Local Government:
Billie Sue Rinn, Grants Coordinator
Whatcom County Executive Office
311 Grand Avenue, Suite 108
Bellingham, WA 98225
(360) 778-5200
BRinn@co. whatcom. wa. us

4. BUDGET

The Local Government will pass through to the Subrecipient no more than $134,000 in CDBG 
funds for those Project costs and expenses determined to be eligible by Commerce and 
according to the following budget. 
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All costs must be tied to the delivery of the CDBG public service and deemed eligible by 
COMMERCE. Refreshments and outreach supplies are eligible for reimbursement if they are 
directly associated with events related to this scope of work. 

Pro_ject Budget Element Budgeted Amount 

Personnel Wages & Fringe Benefit Rate $ 106,575.33 
Communications $ 600.00 
Contract Services - San Juan County Resource Centers (Info & $ 9,380.00 
Referral Services) 
Refreshments & Outreach Supplies $ 1,239.00 
Travel - Out of State travel requires COMMERCE pre-approval; $ 1,000.00 
federal per diem and mileage rates apply 

Direct Program Costs Total $ 118,794.33 

Indirect Costs (a), federally approved rate $ 15,205.67 
TOTAL $ 134,000.00 

The Local Government may require a more detailed budget breakdown, and the Subrecipient will 
provide such supplementary budget information in a timely fashion in the form and content 
prescribed by the Local Government. Any amendments to this Agreement's Budget must first be 
determined by the Local Government as consistent with its CDBG contract with COMMERCE and 
then approved in writing by the Local Government and the Subrecipient. The subrecipient may 
transfer funds between budget line items with written pre-approval from the Local Government's 
Representative. The Local Government shall not be responsible to reimburse Subrecipient for costs 
and expenses that are not found eligible by Commerce, including indirect costs.

Indirect Cost Rate if the Subrecipient chooses to charge Indirect under this grant, the Subrecipient 
shall provide their indirect cost rate agreement that has been negotiated with their cognizant 
agency. 

5. PAYMENT

The Local Government will reimburse the Subrecipient in accordance with the payment 
procedures outlined in the CDBG Management Handbook, Financial Management Section for all 
allowable expenses agreed upon by the parties to complete the Scope of Service. 

The Subrecipient will submit invoices requesting reimbursement on a monthly basis. 
Reimbursement under this agreement will be based on billings, supported by appropriate 
documentation of costs actually incurred. 

Documentation includes GL Detail report for all expenses, mileage logs for vehicle travel 
reimbursement, and receipts or paid invoices for other program costs. Vehicle mileage will be 
reimbursed at the current federal General Services Administration rate. 

It is expressly understood that claims for reimbursement will not be submitted in excess of actual, 
immediate cash requirements necessary to carry out the purposes of the agreement. Funds 
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